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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited

1. Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of changes in equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (‘Ind AS financial statements”).

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3. Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the Ind AS financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the ’
Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the ‘
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appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind As financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

4. Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Ind AS, of the financial position of the company, as at 31 March 2017, and its financial performance
inctuding other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a Statement
of the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(i) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash flow and the Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;
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(ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company; and

(iv) The company has provided requisite disclosures with regard to the holdings as well as dealings
in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016.
Based on audit procedures performed by us and relying on the management representation
we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by
the Company and as produced to us by the Management. Also refer to note 46 to the financial
statements,

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W / W-100022

Prayin Tulsyan
Place: Gurgaon Partier
Date: 2 May 2017 Membership No: 108044
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 5 (i) of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017, we report that:

(1) (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b)The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all the
fixed assets are physically verified by the management in accordance with a phased programme
designed to cover all items of fixed assets over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. As explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deed of the immovable property is held in the name of the
Company.

(i) According to the information and explanation given to us, the inventories, except materials-in-
transit, has been physically verified by the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed
on such verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material and have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(ii1)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies and limited liability partnership covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the order is not applicable.

(iv}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

(viy  The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under syb-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

(vii} (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sates
tax, Value added tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, cess and other material statutory
dues have generally been reguiarly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Value added tax,
Service tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears
as at 31 March 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, Sales
tax, Value added tax, Service tax, duty of Excise and duty of Customs which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xil)

(xiif)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to banks. The Company has neither issued any debentures nor taken any loans or
borrowings from financial institution and government during the year or outstanding as at 31 March
2017.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loan taken
by the Company have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised. As informed to us,
the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

According to the information and explanations given to us, certain instances of fraud on the
Company have been observed by the management wherein few employees, whose services have
been since terminated, have colluded amongst themselves and altered system generated sales
invoices/bills in discordance to the Company systems resulting to a loss of Rs 2.71 lacs to the
Company. As further informed to us, the Company has carried out a detailed investigation in respect
of this matter and accordingly recovered Rs 2.43 lacs, from the concerned offenders. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no other fraud on or by the Company was noticed or
reported during the course of our audit for the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or provided
any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company
and thus paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them during the year,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 134,

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pravin Tulsyan
Place: Gurgaon Partker
Date: 2 May 2017 Membership No: 108044
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Annexure B referred to in paragraph 5(ii) (f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members
of Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited being report on the Internal Financial Controls
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments
Company Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia) Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘1CAl’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

X
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generatly accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were opetating
effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

ForBSR & Co., LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 101248W / W-100022

\.JLV‘\ S

Prayin Tulsyan
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 2 May 2017 Membership No.: 108044
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1.

Iv.

YVardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited
Staterent of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017

{Amounts in Lacs)
For the year ended For th
Particulars y © year endedl
Nate No 31 March 2017 31 March 2616
[ncome
Revenue from operations (net) 4 5,828.84 5,799.22
Other income 25 4.32 1.73
Total income 5,833.16 £.800.95
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 3,299.36 3,543.48
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 27 32,06 {12.46)
Excise duty 166,96 20.25
Employee benefits expense 28 1,040.75 £79.41
Finance cost 29 287.10 2186.82
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 167.23 167.35
Other expenses 5 8%0.66 767.15
Total expenses 5.884.12 5,652.00
(Loss)/ profit before and after tax for the year (I-H) (50.96) 148.95
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial (loss) gain on defined benefit obligation 28 (2.92) 441
Income tax relating to these items - -
Totat comprehensive income for the year (III+IV) (53.38) 153.36
Earnings per equity share (Rs.) (par value of Rs, 10) 34
Basic (0.36) 1.06
Diluted (0.36) 0.62
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
Ag per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of
“hartered Accouniants Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Compfiny Limited
“irm registration No.: 101248W / W-100022 /‘/
A\ '\‘ 4>
) & 7 M Neeraj Jain _D, L. Sharma
Pravin Tulsyan Director Chairman
Parther DIN: 01340459 DIN: 00727581
Membership No. 108044 " :S ‘vo
Plake: Gurgaon Anil Sood
Dalé: 2 May 2017 Chicf Financial Ofticer
= Place: Ludhiana

Date: 2 May 2017
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Vardhman Nisshinbe G Compasy Limted
Cash Flow Stateraent for the year ended 31 March 2047
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Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements (or the year ended 31 March 2017

L.

Corporate Information

vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited (the Company), a subsidiary of Vardhman
Textiles Limited, is a public limited company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 on 17 April, 2009 domiciled in India and has its registered office at
Chandigarh Road, Ludhiana . Vardhman Textiles Limited has entered into a joint venture with
Nisshinbo Textile lnc., Japan for establishment of the Company for manufacture and sale of
garments (mainly shirts).

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 2
May 2017.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

(a) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The Company’s financial statements up to and for the ycar ended 31 March 2016 were prepaved
in accordance with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 (previous GAAP).

As these are the first financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101,First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards”, has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the
previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the company is
provided in Note 32.

(b) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
items:

- Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value
- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

(c) Functional and Presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared in INR, which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest rupee. Also refer note 2(q)
for accounting policy in respect of accounting for foreign currency transactions.




Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

{(d) Going concern assumption

The accumulated losses of the Company as at 3| March 2017 are mors than fifty percent of
its net-worth as of that date, However, the management strongly believes that the losses are
only temporary in nature and based on the orders in hand, expected orders from existing
customers and expected growth in export business, the business of the Company would be
rewarding going forward and the accumulated losses of the Company would be reduced
within a few years. Additionally, the parent company has also given the support letter. On the
basis of above, the management is of the view that the present accumulated losses do not have
an impact on the going concern assumption of the Company. In view of the expected growth
in export business, the management is also confident of being able to meet its export
commitments under EPCG falls due from 2017-18 onwards.

(¢) Use of Lstimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management
to make estimates. judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting
policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments
and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 2(f).
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

()  Critical accounting estimates

Useful lives of properiy, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, internal assessment of user experience and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry. and known technological
advances) and the level of maintenance expenditure required to obtain the expected future
cash flows from the asset,

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting date.

Impairment of property, plan and gguipment

The recoverable amount of property plant and equipment is based on estimates and
assumptions regarding the expected market outlook and expected future cash Nows. Any
changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on Lhe measurement of the
recoverable amount and could result in impatrment.

Post-retivement benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions including
any changes in these assumptions that may have a material impact on the resulting
calculations.
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g)

h)

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends upon the availability of future profits against
which tax losses carried forward can be used.

Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is determined using the valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:
-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics
-Level 2: inputs other quoted prices included in level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, cither directly (i.e. as prices)or{unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities
-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)
In case of financial instruments where the carrying amount approximates fair value due to
the short maturity of those instruments, carrying amount is considered as fair value.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Amounts disclosed as revenue inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade discounts,
value added tax.

Sales of gaods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:

(i) the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the
buyer;

(i) the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

(iii) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity; and

(v) the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be

- measured reliably.
Sales of Services

Revenue from job work services rendered to the customers is recognised in accordance
with the terms of the agreement, when the outcome of such transactions involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably.
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®

Loport Incentives

Export entitlements in respect of exports made under the various schemes are recognized
in the Statement of profit and loss when right to receive credit as per the terms of
scheme is established.

Interest

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR). It is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit losses.

In, & r Claims

Revenue in respect of claims is recognized when no significant uncertainty cxists with
regard to the amount to be realized and the ultimate collection thereof,

Employees benefits
Shorg term employee benefiis

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services
are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages,
short-term bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the
related service is rendered by employees.

Post Employn Benefits
-Defined Contribution Plan;

Providemt Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The

Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related service.

~-Defined Benefit Plans.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the gratuity plan')
covering eligible employees of the Company. The gratuity plan provides a lump-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of
employment with the Company.
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Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation,
performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit
credit method.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as
an asset or liability. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period when they are incurred and transferred to retained earnings
immediately. All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
employee benefits expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

-Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and
non-accumulating in nature, The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is
determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at cach balance
sheet date using projected unit credit method, Expense on non-accumulating compensated
absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

(j)  Property, plant and equipment

Under the Indian GAAP, property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet
on historical cost. The Company has elected to avail the option under Ind AS 101 by not
applying the provisions of Ind AS 16 retrospectively and continue to use the Indian GAAP
carrying amount as the deemed cost under Ind AS on the date of transition to Ind AS.
Therefore, the {ndian GAAP carrying amounts of items of property, plant and equipment
as at | April 2015 (the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS) have been considered as
the carrying amounts under Ind AS on 1 April 2015. (Also refer note 32)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises:

{a) its purchase price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes afler
deducting trade discounts and rebates.

(b) any attributable expenditure directly attributable for bringing an asset to the location and
the working conditian for its intended use and

(¢) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located,

Depreciation is provided on straight line method on the basis of useful lives of such assets
specified in Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date arc disclosed under ‘capital work-in-progress’.
Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and
related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
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(k)

U

retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or
the fair value less cost to sell.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets in the form of purchased computer software are stated at cost less
accumulated amount of amortization. Intangible assets are amortized (software) are
amortised over a period of -4 years on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a
number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, other economic factors (such as the
stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and level of maintenance
expenditure required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. The
amortization method and useful lives are reviewed periodically at end of each financial year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs
are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Botrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(m} Inventories

Inventories comprising raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are valued at
cost or net reatizable value, whichever is lower. The cost in respect of the various items of
inventory is computed as under:

Stores and spares and packing materials are valued art cost.

Cost of raw materials, packing materials and stores and spares is determined using the
weighted average cost and includes costs incurred in bringing the goods to their present
location and condition. The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of
purchases, cost of conversien and other related costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Work-in-progress includes the cost of materials consumed and an appropriate portion of
allocable conversion costs and other overheads depending upon the stage of completion.

Finished goods include the cost of materials consumed and an appropriate portion of
allocable conversion costs and other overheads incurred in bringing the goods to their
present location and condition.

Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces, defective inventories are duly provided for and

valued at net realisable value. Goods and material in transit are valued at actual cost
incurred upto the date of balance sheet. Material and supplies held for use in the
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(n)

(0)

»)

production of inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will
be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average
number of equity and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the period,
except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extenl that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to
be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except when
the deferved income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or
the substanlive enactment date. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The Company offsets current tax
asscts and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right o set of " the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Government Granits

The government grants are recognized only when there is reasonable assurance that the
conditions attached to them shall be complied with and the grants will be received.
Government grants related to assets are treated as deferred income and are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of
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the asset. Government grants related to revenue are recognized on a systematic basis in
the siatement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the refated
costs which they are intended to compensate.

{q) Foreign Currency Transactions

(r)

The foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional
currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the
[unctional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

The foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate at the end of
each reporting period. Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on {ranslating
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial
recognition during the period or in previous financial statements shall be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented
in the statements of profit and loss, within finance cost. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on net basis.

Dividends

Finat dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the
shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by
the company's board of directors.

(s) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initi tition

The Company recognizes financial asset and financial liabilities when it becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. AN financial assets and liabilities are
recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable Lo the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value
through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

arterod
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1hs: O gniti
Non-derivative financial instruments

-Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

-Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash fiows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

-Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently
measured at fair valued through profit or loss,

-Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance
sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due fo the short maturity of these
instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.
The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank,

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitutc hedges from an
economic perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109,
Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so
designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or
financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable
transaction costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value
through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other
income. Assets/ liabilities in this category are presented as current assets/current liabilities
if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after the
balance sheet date.




Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Eguity shares

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects.

Compound financial instruments-convertible preference Shares

Compound financial instruments comprise convertible preference shares are separated
into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On issuance of
the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until
it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for lixed to fixed
classification, Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax,
The carrying amount of the conversion option is not re-measured in subsequent years,
Transaction cosis are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the iiability and
equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

=Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual righls Lo the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

() Impairment of assets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit foss (ECL) model for
the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or foss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses
are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime
ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss,

Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
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Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circomstances indicate that their carrying amounts inay
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs,

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the
statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the
assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is
reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount, The carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

(u) Cash and cash equivalents

The Cash and cash équivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash in hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity period of three months or less from the batance
sheet date, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of
the Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activilies of the Company are segregated.

(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of past event, the company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events not wholly within the control of the company, Where it is not probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote,
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(w) Current — non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current on the basis of the

following criteria:

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
company's normal operating cycle;

b} itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or use to
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the company's normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
¢) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterpart, result in its settiement by the issue of equity instruments do
not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion-of non-current financial liabilities.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current
Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing/servicing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

(x) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and invur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company’s other components,
and for which discrete financial information is available.
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(Amounts in Rupees)

3a, Property, plant aud equipment
As 2t 31 March 2017
(Amounts in Lae<)

Groas block Accumnlated Deprecistion Net Block
As at - Adjustments Asat As at Adjustments As at As at
Deseription yaprb2ots | A998t T cate | 31 Maren 2007 | 1 Apri 2016 Fertheyesr | " b | 21 Mareh 2017 | 31 March 2057
Freshold land 19.57 4424 : 163 81 . 5 : ; 16381
Buildings 128027 231 3 1282.58 18748 3579 s 2326 105932
Plant and equipment 169420 SIS 645 1.738.50 43189 1434 624 53999 119891
Fumiture and fixtures 75 64 346 - 79.10 965 59 . 4558 3151
Vehickes 349 : : 349 21 0.48 . 259 051
Office equipment 18.58 282 : 2780 1.01 393 . 1494 12.46
Compiter e 1226 : : 1226 10.26 1.60 : 1186 0.40
Total 320401 10998 645 3307.55 3239 16207 (2] 3832 246933
As at 31 March 2016
(Ameunts in Lacs)
Giress bivek Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
Asat | adjustmentsr|  Asat Asat Adjustmentst|  Asar Asat As ot
Descripdon 1Aprazoys | Additions Sale | 31 March 2016 | 1apeit2ers | PO OEYER [ g | 30 Mavch 2016 | 31 March 2016 | 31 March 2015
Freehold fand ngs? . . 11957 : s . , 19.57 1957
Buildings 127894 133 . 128027 152,10 3538 a 18748 109280 112684
Plant and equipment 1,640.55 69.90 16.2¢ 1,694.20 12476 n.a 431 9189 126231 131579
Fumitare and fixtures 7782 017 1.3 7564 4388 462 386 3965 3599 nM
Vehicles 349 . . 349 1.63 048 : 211 139 187
Offio equipment 87 12 0.36 1858 426 5.8 ol 1.01 157 1246
Computer equi 1093 133 - 1226 962 0.64 5 1026 200 131
Total 324802 8395 179 320401 53626 159.40 1327 8139 251163 261176
3b. Intangible assets
As at 31 March 2017
{A in Lacs)
Gross block Accomulsted Amertsation Net Black
Asat | Adjustmenes|  Asat Asat Adjwstments|  Asat Asat .
Description Vaprit2ois | AddiGess 1T | 3 Marcn 2017 | 1 Agrin2ote | FUTMEYR | gale | 31 Martk 2017 | 31 March 2017 \
Computer soft 40.71 . - 201 2628 516 z 3144 927 |
Total 4.7 - M - 00 M.TL 2628 514 - 0 N4 .27
As 3t 31 March 2016
(A m Lacs)
Gress block Accumuiated Amertisation Net Black
Asat Adjortments/ Asat A at Adjustments Asat Asat As at
Deseri ; -
péion LAprilz0ys | Additons Sale | 31 March 2006 | 1Ap20ns | TOTWETON | Tgaie | 31 March 2916 | 31 March 2016 | 31 March 2015
Computer soft 2688 3.9 - T 1833 754 . 2628 T 255
Teral 2688 13.83 = % 1833 134 : 262 1Al ass
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{Amounis in Rupem})
# Long tarm beas {Amassats ln Laca)
(Unactired considered goud, unbuse otharwise ssated)
Asni Azmt Ad ol
31 March 2007 3 Murch 3016 1 April 2013
Ot loaus
-loans Lo enploysm 120 188 294
Lo : Current mdobition of loan to employess cleasified ns short iermm koans {0.4%) {075} (063}
fratar nots 11}
0,72 Li3 L3l
5 Quher Minanciol men curvent sty
As gt Asnl Ar
3) Miwrch 2017 31 Merch 2016 1 Aprll 2015
Socurity depoails [%:] 237 e
Bank deposity . 151 .
[dus W0 melure after twelve manthy Aom the reporting date}
[X1] FY I ik
4 Dihar nom-cwrmeint el
Axm As st Anal
31 March 2017 A1 March 2016 1 Aprfl 2015
Proyuid capenrm 432 03
Datemed employes beasfit linbiliies Q.03 L1 an?
dii. i, 940
7 Inwwntories
(ot eost or aei realimabdle ralue, whichewr is iower)
As 2y Anat Asnl
31 Mareh 1007 3L March 1016 1 Aprll 2013
Raw matarisls
~fahric 11583 291 3% 2523
wimy 14119 #0016 5427
Storsa and speres 462 .49 FEE-]
Wak-iri-progris - shiris 261.64 254 24 281 50
Finiched goods - manufactured shirts 08 27235 232462
Raw malcrial in it 5.0 2I5 - 3186
_SN98 2408, $61.80
8 Trwde recalvabien
d awid considered good, nivless ot stared)p
Az Asal Asal
31 Maceh 2007 31 March 2016 1 apell 218
Retelvables cutstanding for @ peried exceeding sin mondhe from
the date they wre dug for paysnent
~considered good 2535 242 319
~congidered doubtful 2560 nw 926
Lass: Provisian for dowbiful debls {38 60} (21 10) & 36)
2535 i1z 412
Quker receivsbin
-comsidered pood 1 348 94 161204 LATI 09
7430 LA,
# Refer notw 43 in respewt of the company’s enposuss te cradit and curmmcy risk related Lo trade receivables
¢ Odber bank alamta®
As Anal A
31 March 2007 31 March 2916 1 Apri 1015
. Bank deposits (dwa to maturs within twalve moatht fraom (ke reporting date} o050 - 025
Margin monwy deposil 1136 e
Lids. z 22s,
7 Thoeo w98 Bot freety remisaible fo the company a thesa are hald with the g ahosiing 2 jp
10 Cash and cish squivabents *
As st Asat Aswt
31 March 2017 31 Mmach 2016 1 Aprll 2015
Cah and cash squivalents
~cash in hond - 941
Balunos with bankt
- cummant BOCUNS 0.t2 220 033




Verdh N o Comp Limited
Nales to the financinl slntements for (he year ended 31 Mavch 2007

{Amounts im Bupees)
11 Shoet term loans® (Ameunts bn Laci)
Anm Aol Ayt
31 March 2017 M Mavch 2016 1 April 3083
Ofher lowns
-logns o employess 043 0T 083
S48, 225 s,
12 Osher NinanciM carvest smen™
As ot Aval Adnl
31 Marech 2007 3 Maceh 2014 1 April 2015
Titeres! aeerued bul not due
- fiwed doposits wilh basks 965 Q05 o0l
Other recaovenvhle - 022 020
Advancas 10 smploysst 004 - L]
Dpritvasve Insinmands o fale viles through profit nnd Toss
Derivative § wot designated a3 hedges T4l [13) 019
T LA 062
* Refer note 43 in rospect of the company's sxpasurs 10 intevent ruw cisk snd credil risk
13 Oser puriesd austs
Ahnsectred considered good, unlass esherwise siaied)
Al As sl At
31 March 2617 31 Mnrch 1816 1 April 2015
Propaid expenses $02 1.43 3167
Dwfarred employes bonalit liabilities oo}y 0,04 aoe
Toviwrnat subaidy clsim receivabla (refer note 373 404.47 33070 2531 54
Capilal swhsidy receivable (rafer note 37) 5342 $342 5342
Cbwer retoveinbles 4617 1246 2204
Al 1o suppliers and
Congidwed good nm 020 a0l
Comidered doubifel 35 R3]
Lams: Providion For doubi ful ad {355) (315%) -
3603 A100, 2090,
14 Lang-tarm bovrewingy
. Asat As 81 As al
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 Apwil 2015
Term loans
From banks* 0210 1,504 00 1,904 00
Lass; Current madurities of long term barrawings (refer nots 19) 492 i) 100.00 100 00
121003 1,704 00 M 1,504.00
Lisbility componeni of 10% non Lath ibe p shasns ¥ 551 96 501.78 436 05
1,741 08 230819 1,260.05
lusi ible praf sheres includes intoreal expense of RS 16.641 4ET recogaised upio curtent yeas (including

¥ Liability component of (0% non [
511,621,685 and Rs 7,050,689 recognised upio year 201516 and 2014-15 respactively) Interss! cxpense is

he lisbiliry companent
(@) Tem loan [rom bank ia secuwed by first charge on entire fixed massis of the Company, bath presest and fulure, including fectory land and bullding and hyposhecaiion of
all curreny a3sews, botk present and Futore
(b) Term koan ftom bank is cepayuble ic cque) u

lulsset by applying he effeciive interest rale of 10% 1o

Hy insiadl with aggregaled snnual emounts raperbed as under:

Reguyment | 3)-March-2007 | 3(-March-2018
{in mllnm 1 i rmallienn ¥
[1¢]
Fi 40 3
4.2 40
FLA T

Term boam from baak carmies 2 Doating intoast vake of bage mie plus 1 35 % pac snnum, paysble monihly
{ ¢} Limbility comp of H% nam lative convenible praference shaves having lenure of 10 years cas be converted imto equity sheres of Wardhman Nisshinbo
Garments Company Limited at par sy lime after ils allotment st ihe oplion of e prefarance ahargholder

* Refer note 37




Vardwan Nisshinbe G C vy Limiled

Nowr 10 (he Manncinl siosaments for: the yesr ended 31 March 2917

(Anounis bn Hupes)
15 Loug-itrm proviviens {Amgunds In Lacy)
Arnt At Asal
31 March 2007 31 March 1016 1 Ageti 2015
Pravision for smployes benofits
Compeniaated whaonces 15.05 1127 735
Gratuity (refor soie 40} 21 iTaz ne
Provision for releniion bonus - LE]] #31
£7.78 4259 — -1
16 Drefarved gevernment gramd
A Arst Avay
3t Mareh 2017 3t Mareh 2016 1 April 2015
Capial Subsidy” 4 85 & 50 421%
AR, 3880, dhll.
Mon-current a0 3405 150
Citred 363 343 365
* The company s recognised grant as 3 which haz been received for e plam & equipment, the same i being emontised over the uscful Wfe of the
plawt & #quipmest in proportion iw which the relaed deprecia P is J Their are no wnfuliled conditions or contl i hed 1o (his grant
17 Short-Mem brrewingy
As ot Ar i As AL
31 March 2017 3 March 2016 | April 2015
Loan te on 4 a 1
- from reluted party-vardhaman Textilee Limvted, the holding company L1982 1,199.12 918 12
Cash credil sccounts peoured 431 59 7590 245 60
LE0E L5780 LISAT2

‘The cash cradil facilities

from Stale Benk of [ndia ars repaysble on demand and are secared by hypotheestion of enlire stock of mw malerial, stock in process and
stats of 1ha Conipany, both presem and fuluse. These limiis sro also sccured by second pari pastu chavge on

finished gaods, receivables £ book debts snd other currem! 2
including factory land sad buikding The mie of inberest 21 on 31 March 2016 iz 14 55% per annum.

entire fixed ascets of the Company, boik present and fulure,

15 Trade paysbles

Dus lo micro and small eMurprizes (refer note 41)

Creditors atlier than micro and small enderprises
+ Relvtod parties - Vardhwnan Textibes Linsited. the holding company
- Relsed parties - Vardivosn Yarns and Threads Linwited, o fallow sobsidiary

- Qs

1% Othar faswelel corrent Nalilifies

Curment maturitios of kang-torm t ings
Interesd a¢erved bul not due on short term borrowsngs fiom
Yardhman Textiles Limited
Creditors for fived sty
Creher payables:

-employee dues

~others

20 Oiker currend Knbibities

Statutory dues paysble

-sales tax

-sxcite duly paysble

-provident fund

-smployse sute insurance {E51)
Laboue welfure fund payable
ot edwalad at source
Advance from cuslomers

21 Shevi-Terin providksg

Provision for employen benefils
Compansaled sbsonces
Omduiry (refer note 40)
Provision For retestion bonus

Arm Ag al Ap at
31 March 27 31 March 2016 ) April 2015
1269 43336 44207
5526 855 648
2889.08 14K dd 360 41
3N ] 1] :la ﬂ“ li. -lﬁi ;]
Arml As it A
31 March 2017 31 March X016 1 Apedl 2005
492 00 100 00 100 00
847 733 T 94
1281 128l 1296
0 T0 37.42 43 89
528 179 268
____ GBANE 35978 13LAT
Ag at Anni Arni
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April T01S
T80 1294 1213
. (%] -
1143 935 ¥10
in 4.11 3o
04 066 052
19 13.33 10 6%
505 357 289
T 83 5
As at Annt Aral
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2043
14 145 0.69
1 87 (X3 L7
. . 1500
251 ————— 31§ 1546




Vardbunan Mizshinbo Gameett Compamy Liriod
Wotew 1o the Nagcinl ipvcmis for i s sl 31 Hamh 1017
{Answals in Loes)

k] Shura coplial

Awitorised
Equily vhars

26,000,000 (provicus v 25.000,000) cquity shares ol Re. 10 aach

Prefommor thars

14, 000:000 (provivs year |4.008,0087) preforence sharcs of R 10 axch

Tapomd, webecribed snd paid up ity

Anal Asnl Annl
1 Monch 79T 3 March 2016 1 Apell 3015
20008 240090 p.X T 1]

(Xl 1] L AN 08 1,400 00

T L RgE———

14,000,004 {pocviout yer 14,000,008} squity thire of s 10 sach fwlly paid up 1,480.00 1, 400.00 140800
Comoilble Preiomns Sham
Tir: Comipisey han isrwind 10,086,000 V0% o ele p shares of Re.10 ach ow 28 bene 3013 heving tonwm of 19 yoiis. Thies prefmnice Shamt <in I i cniedl Dmio oquily
sharm of Vol Misdinbo Ciarments Company Limited a par omy i ailer ia allomn o e opiion of prefs b ders. The p i W in tho batance slwmt e follovs:-
A at Av i Aanl
Punilculars 31 March JHT 31 March 3G 1 Apell 2013
Fiace value of preferomes shares lisue 1,000 00 10840 00 1.800,00
Lishility component of 1724 non i p Lo * ; LAY I 54
Exquity component of convertible prefavence shirss L, e £1448
* Linbillty companent of 10% nen i evtible 1 shanta bt boen ghown wader long e
bomoninge weter moie-14

i) Righiy, prafcrences snd vtk ions atieched 1o sharet
Vardhusan Hishinho G g Lkl

Prefpreuce gharm - The Prefirains Shamm shall cuy » ctupen mie of dickiond of 10% sed 4 non-cuntulalive conventilola prefaoncs shares haviag bmant of 10 yuan. Prefornaca sharm can e converd inko equiy

thures of Vardionsn Whahinbo Gemnass
sinrchoidors shall be subjost 1o the prinisl

{n) Dvarivig, W0 currend yenr aad In ihe proviow o, (hars have been il by of wauiy ok i
ik Show Lok b, witimbie Robding compaar/ hokdimg compiny and’ or whelr cubvidiariay stsocinker
Al
3 Macch 2m?
Namber o Amzwnd
amarey
Vaniiwvss Tookw Limited (rolding conipany]
Ecquity sharsa of Re. 14 each Mully padd up 7140000 14.00
1% mor ki iblo prefs shers of B3 10 cach [RLIRLTRCLH] 1,008 00
fally puid wp® o
1140, LTI

*Repraents the (s wwloe of s prefirence shares beld by (he Vardiorso Texile Limdled (bohding compuny |

ik Ocioils of shareolders hoking more than 5% shars of the Company

Adal
31 March 117
Mumber of
Primii 5 hlding da the chass
Eaquity thirw of k3 |9 esch fally paid vp held
Vardunan Texsibes Limitod (holing ] TF1AG 000 1%
Wisghinko TextBo bac. i 0. 0og L e
1,40 0iFte
Aval
3 Murch 3017
10% nen a b prefe thars of Ra 10 axch
Tubly paidd up held b *
ondtwsiw Textiks Limiled (haiding company) 100000 1005
1,00 [T

*Reproutnks e Doce rabur of the prafrore: shary held by e Yordhman Texiilo Liniad (holding eoapaay}

CumljuhdtlwuylimdﬂiudlumuhnﬂluordupummuMudwdw«lmlwll.lh\mh;ﬂﬂdmmmm
ront and Teictiomz b 2pyli

Asat Aval
31 Maech M6 I April 2015
Masmber of Amaaai Mumber of Amaunt
[ whres
TLAD000 TG T1.40,000 Tid i
1,00,08. 900 1,600 0 Ok R DO 1.080 00

—_—

Ly o LNJ00 _ LILJOS, LTLOD,

A at Avnl
31 Marth 1016 1 Aprll TR
Humber of % hatiiag In the Number of % holliag in
share chist shares vhe e
ThAG000 3% 1) 40000 5%

68,60,000 o 2,60.000 b,
LAARSp0. o0 ldpecnos ___Je0i,

Anal Arm
3N Miarch 2016 1 April 2018
1,80,00,000 100% 1,00,00,000 100%
Lsopepte. b9 Lo, . Jet%s

(o) Dy the five ooy poriod ended 31 Merch 2017 and H Whirch 2016, neither sy bonis shares or ¥aanes laswd for considesstion oluer thov cash that hve oo issaind Aer aay shares (hal T b buoaget ek

31 Oftrer cqulty

Retwiead Earning

Buslunce ol Lo egining of the yeae
roi for 1 ymt

Babance &l o end of' dig period

Other Comprefansive fricame

Pabus 1L bhe brgining of the par

Rameassnenl of defleod benefil Bability-scraniel (loss¥ gain
Halawscs o o vl of ke poriad

Al Anat

31 Murch 1HT M Manth 6
{1430 B9 nimM)
3038 1409

T anan L
A Akl

21 Mavch 2007 31 March 204

40 1)
@9 441
i

i




Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2017
{Amonats jn Lacs)

24 Revenun from operatigus

Sale of products
-own manufactured textile garments (shirts)
=iraded goods {fabric)

Sale of servicos - stitching chargea / job work

Other operating income
-Liabilites / provisions no longer required written back
-strap sales
~axport benefits
-amortisation of deferred government grant
-Foreign exchange gain (net)

25 Oiber income

Interest income on :
- fixed deposits with banks
Fair value gain on derivaties not designated as hedges
Inierest income from financial assests measured as amortised cost
Others

26 Cost of materials consemed

Fabric
Trims

27 Changes in inventories of findshed goods and work-lo-progress

Opening stock (shirts)
-work-in-progress
-finished goods - own menufactured

Less : Closing stock {shirts)
“work-ln-progress
-finished goods - own manufactured
Net Decrease/({Incrense) in inventories

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
5640.73 5678.65
42.74 48.14
5683.47 §726,79
8.4) 18.64
712 151
17.14 9.78
94.76 26,10
.68 3.65
14.29 6.75
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
0.24 0.06
241 0.8
0.05 009
1.61 0.7
4.32 1.73
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2.840.96 3,082.93
458.40 461.15
S22236 St
Year ended Yearended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
254.24 281.50
171235 23262
261.64 2544
232.89 272.35
3206

(12,46}
=t




Vardhman Nisehlobe Garments Company Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
{Amounts In Lacs)

28 Employes beuelis enpense Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 3 Mareh 2016

Salaries, wages, gratuity, compensaied absences and bonus 938.74 784.11
Coniribution to provident and other funds 99.81 £3.84
Warkmen arud staff welfare expenses 5.08 6.96
Amartisation of defered employee benafit expense on emplayes loan 0.05 0.09

1043.67 875.00
Less: Acturial tosa/ (gain) presenited in other comprehensive income 2.92 <441

29  Finance cest

Inkevest sxpense 22176 23487
Intereat expense on liability component of 10% non cumulative convertible preference shares 30.18 457
Other borrowing cost 9.7 6.22

3 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depresiation on property, plani and equipment 162,07 159.40
Amortisation of intangible asset 5.16 T7.94
167.23 16735

31  Otler expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts 3549 5045
Pecking materials consumed 328.95 304.17
Power and fuel 98.82 95.62
Freight, clearing and forwarding 110.88 T76.65
Repairs and maintenance

- machinery 49.39 35.22
- athers 41.00 619
Insurance 224 506
Rates and taxes 325 2465
Legal and professional {refer note 38) 87.82 2979
Travelling and conveyance 40.87 3626
Printing and stationery T.88 7.20
Communication expenses 6.20 5.9
Sales promotion 17.65 1160
Expense for group corporate services 328 3.25
Processing charges 15.50 237
Provision for doubtful debis/advances 7.50 1539
Bad debts/sundry balences written off - 1.50
Lass on sale of fixed assets (net) . 494
Fixed asset written off 0.21 214
(Incroase)f decrease in excise duty on change in inventories of finished goods (0.52) 1.47
Miscellansous expenses 3424 48.84

890,66 _762:15




Yardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited
Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

32, First time adoption of Ind AS

The financial statements of Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited for the year ended 31
March 2017 are required to be prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For all periods up to and for the
year ended 31 March 2016, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India and complied with the accounting
standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with paragraph 7 of the
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has now prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS
applicable for period ended 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for
the year ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In
preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April
2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. An explanation of how the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS has affected Company’s Balance sheet, Statement of profit and Loss, is set out in
note 33. Exemptions on first time adoption of Ind AS availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 have

been set out below.

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requircments under Ind AS. The Company has, accordingly, applied following exemptions:

a) Property, plant and equipment and deemed costs

The Company has elected to avail the option under Ind AS 101 by not applying the provisions of Ind
AS 16 — Property, plant and equipment retrospectively and continue to use the Indian GAAP carrying
amount as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS. The same selection has been
made in respect of intangible assets.

b) Estimates

The estimates at | April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Indian GAAP. (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)




Yardhwan Nisshinbo Garments Compuny Linited
Notex fr the financiat Statements for the year ended 31 Maveh 2017

33 Hecoucilintions
The following 1ecencilialions provides the effect of transition to Ind AS from IGAAP in accordance with Ind AS 101

{n) Equity asat | Apeil 2005 and 31 March 2014
(Amount in Lies)

Pacticulnry Ref Opeaning Balance sheet as at L April 2015 Balamce shect #s ot 31 March 2016
As per previous Effeci of As per lnd AS As per Effect of Ag per [wd AS
GAATP transition 10 Ind previous tramsition to
AS GAAP Ind AR
ASSETS
Nan-cuvrent assets
(a) Propenty, plant and equipment 7 2,569.61 4215 261176 2483 13 38 50 2,521.63
(h) Inlangiblc assets 8.55 . 155 14,44 . 14.44
(¢) Financinl assets . - - -
-Lowg tenm Louans | 237 {0.07) 2.30 1.19 {0 06) 119
-Ciivens Nimanciol non-cueeent assels 272 - 272 389 - 189
(d) Ouber non-current assels | 033 0.07 049 . O 0H 0.06
() Othwr 1ax assets 176 - 176 | 82 . 1.89
Totnl of aon-curvent assets 2.585.34 4215 2.627.50 2.504.53 38.50 2.543.03
Current assets
(2} Invenlorics 661.00 - G6h1 00 908,08 . 998.08
() Financial assets
-Trade receivables 1,431 28 . 1,431 28 1,614.15 . 1,614 15
-Other bank balances 025 - 0.25 - - .
-Cush and cash eyuivalents 0.73 - 0.7 220 220
-Shart teew loans [ 073 {0y 0.63 G 80 (0 05) 0.7%
-Othea Tinancial cunignt assels 2 042 019 062 B27 [(3.4) (W]
ey Ollver curtent assets | 340.70 009 340,80 418.25 Q0 418 30
Total of enrrent nssets 2.435.12 0.1y 243531 3,032, 76 0.83 3.034.59
FOTAL OF ASSETS 5.020.46 42,35 5,062.81 5,538,29 3933 5.577.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity shave capital 1,400 .00 - 1,400 00 1,400 00 1,400 00
by Other equity & (502.27) (463 23) (965 50} 1302.27) {509.87) (812 14)
‘Totnl of equity 897.73 {463.23) 434,50 197,73 {509.47) 54786
Linbilities
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liahililies - .
-Long ferm bariowings 5 1,804 00 45605 2,260 05 1,704 00 0178 2,205.78
Other Fnascial non current liabililes . . - .
(o) Long tenm provisions 37 51 - 37 51 49 50 . 44 50
(o) Dutcored govl grant ? - JE.50 38 50 . 34 83 34.85
Totnt of nun-current labllitles 1,841.51 4055 2,336.00 1.753.50 £36.63 2,290.13
Cweresd Habiliiles
{w) Finaneial tabilities
-Stiorl term borrowings 1,163.72 . 116372 157502 . 1,575 02
“Teade puyilbles 6 831 60 737 83898 803 44 g4l 31235
-Other financial current liabilities 231.47 - 231.47 259.75 . 259.75
{0y Other current liabilities 3757 . 37.57 4575 : 4575
(o) Delerred govt grant 7 . 165 3.65 - 365 365
(<)Y Shont lerm provisions 16.86 . 16.86 3.09 - 3.09
‘Fotab of current Habikidles 22802 11.03 2.292.24 2.687.05 12.57 2.699.62
TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES £.020.46 41,35 5,062.81 £.538.29 39.33 557761




vacdl T i Limited

Nudey vo she Ruanciad Stptemenia for the yenr eimled 31 March 2017

33 (b} ‘Meconcibialion of Siatement of Profit sk Loz ns previensly repuried mimler IGAAP 10 Tl AS
CAponnt bn Iojees.)

Parilcwln Rel Yem stidded M fach 2016
A3 pre provious ElTesl of (vanigilion 1o Ag por [Hl AS
GAADP Jaid Ax

hiame

Revemie (kam operations (net) 4.7 57785 27 S0 n
Qiler inconie 1,2 081 092 1 73
Toinl 1ncome 5.776.32 24.63 5.800.95
Expemses

Cost of marerials consuned & 3,540 60 188 3,547 4
Chanys in imvemoies of fmished goods and work-in-progress {1248) - (12 45)
hEmise duly 4 . 023 2025
Employes bevielid expense [ T 94 450 ET9 4}
Finance col M1 457] 186 B2
Depsecialion and amarlisation ¢xpense T 163 6% 146% 167 35
Oiber expenses & T6d 49 il 141 T47 15
Tosal expenses 557612 TS 68 5,651 95
Profil befare iax L] 000 148 96
Thx expense

(1) Cuarend tax

(2) Defeired lax = =

Profll far the perind LKL 4000 148 96
Oler comprehewsive income

Ienea tint will wot be reclassified subscunenily (9 prafit or lox

Aciurinl gain ou dedined banelil obdiyation ] 441 440
Incaine 1% relating 1o ithese iz L

Ineuss ikl will be reciassifed 10 profl or losy

Incrane Lax relating 1o Mems that will be reclassified Lo proilf) or loss

Toinl compsehensive lacowe for the period ang adl 153 36
Notgs to the reconcilingion of coiity ax gt L Apell 2008 aud 30 Mareh 2016 gud siatemient af profic wd loss far (he year pudid 3 Algrgh 2006

1.Fi inl I | st asorlised conl

Under Indign GAAP, interesi (ree loan Lo employees were ded al their ion value Undet Ind AS, (vese loans are (a measured a0 amoriised cosi on ke basis ol

wifective wnter¢st rate method Due 1o 1his, ohy 1erm loan (o smployeas and shorl 1erm Joans o employees hos decreased by Re 7,147 and 9,299 respeclively as at | Apil
2005 (31 March 2016:Rs 6,047 and Rs 4,867 respectively) snd difference bedwesn carnying amaunt and amsortised cost bas been recopnized w Deferred employes benslil
Jiability wnder the head ‘Other nod-curren assels™Olbers curtent agsels’' Further in 1he year 2015-16 . Employse benelil expense as st 31 Merch 2016 dacreased by Rs
9.20% due 10 isation of the deferred employes boneth liabikity which is offsel by ile notionsl interast inconie of Rz 9,299 recogniscd on loam Lo employ

2. Devivative Wsirumes

Tlie faiv vabee of derivalive wmsirunenis i ¢ forward conraces was recognized wnder Ind AS which was not recagnized wides Indian GAAP Derivative instruments 3t Jnir
vohre hrouah proily of loss reflect the positive change in fair walue in thoss forelgn exchange forward conlracty that are nol desigialed in hedye relatlonships, bl are
wevenhiless, inlended 10 reduce ihe level of loreign y sigk for expecied sakes and purch Accordingly a5 per requiremed of Ind AS, Rs #0431 bas been adjusied
i retained sarnings a5 o 1 Apri! 2005 on acommnt of fair valoe of derivative instraments The prof For the year and toial equity as a1 31 kiwrch 2016 incresed by Ks
B2.822 due o (3i valug of Lhe derivative insimments

3. Deflued benedi obiigatbon

Under Ind AS, remeasureiments i ¢ aciwial geins and losses were gnized i olher prehensive ncome and not rechssified 10 prof and boss in o subsequent
period Under il previows GAAP, Jhese remmeasirgnients weee forming part of the profil or hss Tor the yenr As a l!lll" of this change, the praf lar the year ended )1
tdarch 2016 decreasod by ks 440,838 wnd acturind gain ol the same smousd has beet iped in olher com meomee

4.Excige dwuty

Under Indisw GAAP, salw of goads wag preseuled as el of excise duty However. under Ind AS, sale of poods inclides excise dury Thas, sabe of'goads under Ind AS has

i d by R 20,25.297 whth 2 5 ] in excise duty disclosed under xp in e ol profit and bosy

& Converlible predersuce sliares

The Company Tas issued non cumulative convertible redeonable proferonce shares Under Ingfan GAAPR. (he peference shares aer: clussified ws wyuity and dvidend
pasible thereon was (reated a5 disiibution of profit Under Ind AS. convenible preference shares are separnied inlo liokdlity and equity companenls based un the (eous o’
tie cowraci Intesesd on linbilily compowen is mcoullsed nams the enm.ve mleml meihod Thus the preference share capinal is reduced by I8s 38,554,329 as on | Apeil

2015 (31 March 2006: Rz JB.554,329) wilh a T wh gt us Nshility ooy O 1he liabifity comp inletesl &y is calculatod which
leads 10 decrease in ¢quily by Rs 7,050,689 as on OI - Apul ZI?IS Tbe profil for t||u year and equily 33 #i 10 -March-2018 decreased by Rs 5,017.00] due 1o iba est expense
an the liabilry comp ' nun It preale shares

6. Heerlfication of revions period errars

Under Ind AS previus period orrars were cosrecied by restaling the I'ug,ues of the period to which the crrar pering On O1-April-2015 amown of Rs 737,353 has been
adjusted through oiler equily with corsesponding increase In irade payables on sccount of previous period errors The profil for the year ended 31-March-2016 decreased
L Ks 891,402 wilh corresponding increase in (rade payable an sccount of errors ideniified during Lhe year 2015- 1T which periaing 1o the year 201 i-16

T Governmenl Genat

Under Tnd AS, Government gl reluted 10 lixed asseis are ueared as delerred income and are recognized in the statement of prolit and loss ow & sysiemaiic basis and
rational hlns aver (hs uselul life of the assel On 01-April-2015 omousn of yovernmem grani of Re 4,215,266 (11 darch 2016: Rs 3,850,061) has beem adjusted by incremse

in e property, plem and equip with pondiing ad) n @ wrant I e pear 200516 amiovin of Rs, 165205 has boen recagrised under
rercriue from oumions on acgounl ol isaicn of go yrant with ponding i i the d Jalion expense i ilie stalement ol profit 2ad loss
3.CHher ety

(Mlver equity 38 M 1 April 2015 liws beon adjusted consequent to ihe above Ind AS transition adjusimenis
39 [c) "Cosh Now statenent
Thiere were: i shynificant reconciliation items betweon cash Nows prepased under Indian GAAP s ilose prepared under Ind AS
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34, Earnings per share:

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is set out below:

Amomts in Lacs

Particular Year ended Year ended

| . s 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016
Net Profit after tax atiributable to equity shareholders (50.96) 148.95
Number of weighted average equity shares

Basic 140.00 140.00
Add: Effect of dilutive equity shares 10% - non- cumulative -¥ 100.00
convertible preference share

Diluted 140.00 240.00
Nominal value of equity share 10 10
Nominal value of 10% non-cumulative convertible preference

share 10 10
Earnings per equity share

Basic {0.36) 1.06
Diluted (0.36) (.62
*10% non-cumulative convertible preference shares are the

potential equity shares considered to be anti-dilutive in nature;

Accordingly these have not been adjusted to arrive at the dilutive

earnings per share.

35, Capital commitments and others:

As at 31 March
2017

Partlculars

As at 31 March
2016

Amount in Locs

As at 1 April
2015

“(a) Exports obligations under Export

Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme 735.57

974,92

1,559.62

2019 and 2020.

(b} As per the sanction letter for the term loan taken from a bank, the Company is required to create a
reserve before December 2017 equivalent to 50% of repayment of installments of the year 2018,
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M

(ii)

36. Related parties:

Related parties and nature of related party relationship where control exists:

Description of relationship

Name of the party

_Ho_lcﬁn_g company

Vardhman Textiles Limited, India (VTL)

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Description of relationship

Name of the party

Joint venture

Nisshinbo Textile Inc., Japan

Fellow subsidiary company

Vardhman Yarns and Threads Limited, India

Subsidiary of joint venturer

Naigai Shirts Co. Ltd, Japan
Nisshinbo Shanghai Co .Ltd., China

Mr. D.L. Sharma
Mr. Anil Sood
Ms. Karan Walia

Key managerial person

Whole-Time Director
Chief Financial Officer from 10 March 2015
Company Secretary from 25 November 2014

(ifi) Transactions with related parties:

Amounts in Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2017

‘Short-term borrowings taken duﬁg the year
Vardhman Textiles Limited

Short-term borrowings repaid during the year
Vardhman Textiles Limited

Interest expense on short-term borrowings
Vardhman Textiles Limited

Interest paid on short-term borrowings
Vardhman Textiles Limited

Expenses paid on behalf of the others
Vardhman Textiles Limited

Expenses paid by others on behalf of the Company

vardhman Textiles Limited
Vardhman Yarns and Threads Limited

X )

200.00

200.00

92.29

97.02

1.73

15.55
108.51

Year ended
31 March 2016

681.00

400.00

97.02

81.64
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Particulars

Purchase of raw materials
Vardhman Textiles Limited
Nisshinbo Shanghai Co .Ltd.

Vardhman Yarns and Threads Limited
Nisshinbo Textile Ine.

Revenue

Vardhman Textiles Limited
Vardhman Yarns and Threads Limited
Nisshinbo Textile Inc.

M. Anil Sood

Purchase of stores and spares/ capital items
Vardhman Textiles Limited (capital items)

Remuneration paid to Key managerial personnel

iv) Balances due from/ to the related parties:

| Particulars

Year ended Year emﬁdh '
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
1,343.32 1,632.86

Nil 10.44

1.59 Nil

40.96 45.17

0.08 342

3.87 2.90

0.38 037

497.76 134.50

7.14 5.86

Amounts in Lacs
As at As at As at

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Short-term borrowings

Vardhman Textiles Limited 1,199.12 1,199.12 918.12
Interest acerued but not due on short-

term borrowings (net of TDS)

Vardhman Textiles Limited 83.06 $7.32 71.94
Advance to suppliers

Naigai Shirts Co. Ltd 1.36 1.35 1.27
Nisshinbo Textile Inc. 0.04 0.05 Nil
Nisshinbo Shanghai Co. Lid. 0.43 0.43 Nil
Trade payables

vardhman Textiles Limited 212.69 435,35 442,06
Vardhman Yarns and Threads Limited 56.26 8.54 36.48
Trade receivables

Nisshinbo Textile Inc. Nil 22.30 25.12
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37. The Government introduced the modified Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS) for the
textiles and jute industries with effect from | April 2007 upte 31 March 2012 and extended till 31
March 2017 in order to provide the financial and operational parameters of the scheme in respect of
loans sanctioned with effect from | April 2007, Complying with the conditions of the Scheme, the
Company received initial approval under TUFS, to the extent of Rs.1,952.00 Lacs. On account of
savings in the project cost post implementation this amount is being worked out to Rs.1,699.32 Lacs on
the basis of which claims have been acknowledged by the bank.

The Scheme provides the following benefits to the Company:

- areimbursement of 5% on the interest charged by the iending agency on technology upgradation
project in conformity with the Scheme.

- 10% capital subsidy on specified machinery required in manufacture of technical textiles and
garmenting machines.

As per the above Scheme, the Company has recognised:

- Interest subsidy of 5% amounting to Rs.468.91 Lacs recognised upto current year (previous year
Rs. 395.14 Lacs) in the Statement of Profit and Loss, with a recoverable Rs. 404,46 (previous year
Rs. 330.69 Lacs previous year) under the head “Other current assets” in the balance sheet.

- 10% capital subsidy amounting to Rs.53.41 Lacs (previous year Rs. 53.41 Lacs ) on specified
machinery by showing the same as a deferred government grant with a recoverable under the head

“Oxther current assets” in the Balance Sheet.

38. Audifor’s remuneration:
- Amounits in Lacs

Particulars Year ended | Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Audit fee (excluding service tax)

- statutory audit 8.50 8.50
- certification work 0.25 0.25
- reimbursement of expenses B 056 0.51
Total _ 9.31 9.26 |

39, Segment reporting

The Company is in the business of manufacture and sales of textile garments (mainly shirts). This is the
only activity performed and is thus also the main source of risks and retums. Company has a single
reportable segment which is reviewed by top management. Further company operates in more than one¢
geographical scgment hence the relevant disclosures as per IND AS 108 are applicable to the company.
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Geographical information
The geography wise revenue and assets based on domicile of customer and location of assets respectively
are as follows:

Amount in Lacs

Particulars Year ended India Belgium Japan Korea Peru | Total .
Revenue from | 31 March 2017 | 4,862.69 217.11 499.51 54.90 49.24 5,683.46
sale of products .
I 31 March 2016 | 5,504.21 88.32 13424 | Nil Nil 5,726.78
Non-current 31 March 2017 | 2,507.79 Nil Nil Nil Nil 2,507.79
assels

31 March 2016 | 2,538.01 Nil Nil Nil Nil 2,538.01

Revenue from two major customers amounted to Rs.2,200.10 Lacs aggregating to 39% of total revenue
during the year ended 31 March 2017 (Rs. 2,107.26 Lacs aggregating to 37% during the year ended 31
March 2016).

40. Disclosures pursuant ¢to Ind AS 19 - “Employee benefits”

General description of defined benefit plan:
Gratuity plan: The Company has a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit
equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. Gratuity is payable to all
eligible employecs of the Company on retirement, separation, death or permanent disablemeat, in terms
of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s plan, whichever is more
beneficial.
The following tables set out the disclosures in respect of the gratuity plan as required under Ind AS 19.

(A)

Reconciliation of benefit obligations for gratuity for the year:

- B Amounis in Lacs

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016
Opening defined benefit obligation 39.46 31.02
Current service cost 14.53 11.29
Interest cost 315 748
Actuarial (gains) / losses 2.91 (4.40)
Benefits paid (5.51) (0.92)
Closing defined benefit obligation B 54.56 39.46
(B) Actuarial gain / (loss) recognized are ay follows:
] ' Amounis in Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
| 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016

Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year — obligation (291) 4.40
Actuarial gain / (loss) recognized in the year (291 4.40
Unrecognized actuarial gains / (losses) at the end
of the year Nil | Nil
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(C) The amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows:
Amounts in Lacs

Particulars As at As at

315 March 2017 | 31" March 2016 |
Present value of obligation as at the end of the 54.56 39.46
year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year Nil Nil
Funded / (unfunded) status Nil Nil
Unrecognised actuarial (gains) / losses at the Nil Nil
end of the year
Net assets / (liability) recognised in Balance (54.56) (39.46)
Sheet

(D) The amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:
Amounts in Lacs

Particulars Year ended Year ended

| 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 |
Current service cost 14.53 11.29
Past service cost Nil Nil
Interest cost 3.15 248
Expected return on plan assets Nil Nil
Tota) amount recognized in statement of Profit 17.69 13.78
and loss

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year 2.91 (4.40)
Total amount recognized in Other Comprehensive 291 (4.40)
Income

(E) Principal actuarial assumptions in respect of provision for gratuity are as unrdernr:

] . As at As at As at
~ Economic assumptions 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Discount rate 7.35% 8.00% 7.90%
Expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets , _ Nil L Nil Nil
Demographic assumptions il A8 at RSt
- 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Retirement age 58 years 58 years 58 years
Mortality table IALM (2006-08) | 1AL (2006-08) 1AL (2006-08)
ultimate ultimate ultimate
Withdrawal rates 5% 5% %
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(F) History of defined benefit obligations and experience gains and (losses):-

Amounts in Lacs
 Year ended | Year ended Yearended | Year ended | Year ended

31 March 17 | 31 March 16 | 31 March 15 | 31 March 14 | > Maret

Particalars

Present value of
obligation as at

the end of the 54.56 39.43 31.02 19.81 20.52
year

Fair value of plan
assets as at the - - - - -
end of the year
Deficit (54.56) (39.43) (31.02) (19.81) {20.52)

Experience
adjustment gain

/(loss) for plan 291 4.40 (3.39) (7.80) -
liability
Experience
adjustment loss/
(gain) for plan
assets

(G) The quantitative sensitivity analysis on net liability recognized on account of change in significant
assumptions;

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Discount Rate
0.50% Increase 3.08) (2.36) (147
0.50% decrease 3.38 2,59 1.62
Future Salary increase
0.50% Increase 341 2.63 1.66
0.50% decrease (3.14) (2.42) (1.52)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant.
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(H) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Particulars As at Asat As at ]
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Within 1 year 1.87 .64 1.16

1-5 year 7.22 3.71 4.25

Beyond S years 4547 32.10 25.59

41. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26
August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspondences with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of
the Memorandum. Based on the information available with the management there are no amounts
payable to micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2017,

42, Deferred taxes

The Company has significant accumulated brought forward losses from earlier years and the
management is of the view that it is not probable to realise the deferred tax assets in the near future.
Accordingly, in the absence of probability of future profits, the deferred tax assets have been
recognized only to the extent of deferred tax liability.

(a) The components of net deferred tax assets are as follows:-

Amount in Lacs

[ Particulars As at As at As at
| 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Deferred tax liabilities (a)
Accelerated depreciation 283.67 273.13 257.97
Derivatives instruments not designated 0.74 0.25 0.06
‘as hedges
Total 284.41 273.39 258.03
Deferred tax assets )
Provision for leave encashment 5.19 3.93 2.48
Provision for gratuity 16.86 12.19 9.58
Provision for doubtful debts and 9.93 7.61 2.86
advances
Provision for bonus 1.85 Nil Nil
Brought forward losses and unabsorbed 647,72 638.75 693.83
depreciation
Deferred government grant 076 1189 13.02
Total 692.33 674.39 721.79
“Deferred tax assets restricted to 10
deferred tax liabilities (b) i 2339 B 258.03 |
Net deferred tax assets [(a)-(b)] Nil Nil Nil
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(b) Unrecognised deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the company can use the benefits

therefrom:

Particulars Asat Asat Asat |
- | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 | 1 April 2015
Tax losses including unabsorbed depreciation 40791 401.00 463.76

The tax losses will expire in 2019-2022 and unabsorbed depreciation has no expiry.

43. Financial Risk Management

The principal financial assets of the Company include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and
bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The principal financial liabilities of the company,
other than derivatives include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and the main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the day to day operations of the company.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management ovevsees the management of these risks that advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company.

This note explains the risks which the company is exposed to and policies and framework adopted by
the company to manage these risks:

a) Market Risk

Miarket risk is the risk that the fair vaiue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and investment risk.

(i} Foreign currency risk

The company operates internationally and business is transacted in several currencies. Further the
company also imports certain assets and material from outside India. The exchange rate between the
Indian rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate
substantially in the future. Consequently the company is exposed to foreign currency risk and the results
of the company may bc affocted as the rupee appreciates/ depreciates against foreign currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the future probable transactions and recognized assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than cormpany’s functional currency.

The company measures the risk through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows and
manages ils foreign currency risk by hedging the transactions that are expected to occur within a period
of twelve months. The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency
risk was based on the following amounts as at the reporting dates:
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Particulars As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31° March 2016 |
Trade receivables S
-In USD 0.31 o 0.47
-Foreign exchange forward contracts sell {0.69) (1.40)
foreign currency in USD#
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) Nil ) Nil
Trade Payables o
-In USD - 007 0.09
-In JPY 0.39 0.48
Net exposure to foreign currency risk o
(liabilities)
0.07 0.09
-In USD
0.39 0.48
-In JFY
# Excess forwards are taken by the company on the basis of past performances.
The following significant exchange rates applied during the ycar:
Particulars | 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16

(Average exchange

(Average exchange

(Year end rates)

(Year end rates)

rate) rate)
INR/USD 65.58 64.46  64.84 66.33
INR/JPY 0.59 0.56 0.58 0.59

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Any changes in the exchange rate of JPY and USD against INR is not expected to have significant
impact on the Company's profit due to the less exposure of these currencies. Accordingly, a 10%
appreciation/depreciation of the INR as indicated below, against the JPY and USD would have
increased/reduced profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on the foreign currency
exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis assunes that all other variable remains constant:
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Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
" 10% (Strengthening)/ weakening of USD | (0.47)/ 047 (061} 0.61
against INR
10% (Strengthening)/ weakening of JPY (0.02)/ 0.02 (0.02)/ 0.02
against INR

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding foreign currency forward held by the
company to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016

Contracts against export

-In USD 0.69 1.40

' Contracts against Import

InUSD Nil ' Nil

(ii) Investment Risk

The company has not made any investment hence it is not exposed to investment risk.

(iii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with
floating interest rates, which are included in interest bearing loans and borrowings in these
financial statements. The company’s fixed rate borcowings are carried at amortised cost. They are
therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash
flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
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At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instrument is at  its
fair value:

B Particulars Carrying Amount ]
. ) Asat31March | Asat31 March | AsatlApril
Variable rate instruments 2017 2016 2015
Long term borrowings 1,210.13 1,704.00 | 1,804.00
Current maturities of long term debt 492,00 ~100.00 100.00
“Short term borrowings 1,630.81 1,575.02 1,163.71
B Particulars | Carrying Amount |

Fixed rafe instraments As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April

207 2016 2015
Liability component of [0% non 551.95 501.78 | 456.05
cumulative preference shares term
borrowings

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrumenis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion
of loans and borrowings affected. A change of 100 basis points in interest rates for variable rate instruments at
the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss for the below years by the amounts shown
below. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars 31March 2017 | 31 March 2016 L April 2015

Increase/ (decrease) in 100 basis point 33.32 3379 | 30.67

b) Liquidity Risk

The financial liabilities of the company, other than derivatives, include foans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is
generated from operations. The company monitors its risk of shortage of funds to meet the financial liabilities

using a liquidity planning tool.

The below is the detail of contractual maturities of the financial liabilities of the company at the end of each
reporting period:
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Particulars As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016 | Asat 1 April 2015 |

Bng—Term Borrowings
including current maturity
of long term debts

(Carrying amount) 2,254.09 2,305.78 2,360,05
‘Contractual cash flows of long
term borrowings 3,008.25 3,295.719 3,606.34
0-3 months 167.16 B 72.97 78.40
3-12 months 482.33 214.57 232.13
1-2 years 597.10 649.50 287.54
2-5 years 761.64 1,358.75 2,008.25
More than 5 years 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Short Term Borrowings
(Carrying amount) 1,630.81 1,575.02 1,163.71
Contractual cash flows of short
term borrowings 1,630.81 1,575.02 1,163.71
0-3 months 1,630.81 1,575.02 | O 1,163.71
3-12 months - E -
1-2 years = _ - -
2-5 years - R -

More than 5 years - - =

‘Trade Payables (Carrying 557.04 812.34 838.97
amount)
“Contractual cash flows of trade 557.04 81234 | 838.97
payables
| 0-3 months 557.04 812.34 838.97

3-12 months g . =

|2 years - - E
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25 years -

“More than 5 years - -

‘Other Financial liabilities 191.85 159.75 13147
(Carrying amount)

Contractual cash flows of o 191.85 159.75 131.47
other financial liabilities

0-3 months 191,85 159.75 131.47

3-12 months - -

-2 years -

2-5 years -

Mare than § years - =

¢) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The
maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables which are typically
unsecured. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances is limited as the company generally
invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating
agencies. The Company’s credit risk in case of all other financial instruments is negligible.

The company also assesses the creditworthiness of the customers internally to whom goods are sold on credit
terms in the normal course of business. The credit limit of each customer is defined in accordance with this
assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers
are gencrally covered by letters of credit or other means of credit insurance.

The impairment analysis is performed on client to client basis for the debtors that are past due at the end of each
reporting date. The company has not considered an aflowance for doubtful debts in case of Trade receivables
that are past due but there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. On account of adoption of IND AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model
to assess the impairment loss or gain. The company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit
risk factors such as credit ratings from external credit rating agencies and company’s historical experience for

customers.
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The following table gives the detail of revenues generated from top five customers of the company:

i Particulars As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016 |

_(;l)ﬁeven ue from top five customers

- Amount of sales o 3,652.55 3,441,272
% of total sales ' 62.82 59.41
Credit Risk Exposure

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balance for the year ended 31 March 2017 was Rs.
750,000 and for the year ended 31 March 2016 was Rs.1,183,822,

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 | As a¢ 31 March |
2016

(b)Allowance for doubtful debt

-Balance at the beginning of the period . 21.09 1 9.25
' -lmpairment loss recognized 7.50 : 1133
“-Amount written off Nil Nil

| -Balance at the end of the period 28.59 21.09

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as disclosed
at Note 8.

d) Capital Management

The capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the company. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is 10 maintain optimum
capital structure to reduce cost of capital and to maximize the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capilal to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The Company’s gearing ratio was as follows:
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' Particulars As at  Asat As at
________ ) 31 March 2007 | 31 March2016 | 1 April2015 |
Borrowings 3,884.90 3,880.80 3,523.76
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (0.11) (2.20) (0.73)
“Net debt 3,884.78 3,878.60 3,523.03
“Total equity 533.98 587.86 434.50
“Capital and Net debt 4,418.87 4,466.46 3,957.53
“Gearing ratio 88% 87% 89%

Further, there have been no such breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowings in the current period which would have permitted the bank to immediately call loans and

botrowings.

There were no changes in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended
31 March 2017, 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015.

44. During the year, following prior period expenses have been corrected by restating the figures of the
previous year ended 3 | March 2016:

Amount before the | Prior period errors |  Amount after the
correction of prior | identified during | correction of prior
Fiancal sement capton | peSsTClor | e carentyen | perted o
March 16 2017 March 2016
Cost of material consumed 3,540.60 2.88 3,543.48
Freight, clearing and forwarding 75.65 0.99 76.65
Miscellaneous expenses 46.18 2.65 48.84
Power and fuel 93.24 2.37 95.62
Trade payables 803.43 8.91 812.34

Priot period expenses identified in year 2015-16 pertaining to year 2014-15 amounting to Rs.7.37 Lacs
have been corrected by making an adjustment in the opening equity of opening balance sheet of ] April
2015 by corresponding adjustment in trade payable.
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racogeiten wpam iis
Financinl smeeds:
Laong term foans ar2 . 0.72 o
Chbwet Anancisl nos-cumand nassts 822 - 822 [ =]
Trade receivable 1,374.20 1,31430 1,374 20
Crbar bawk balmoss 12.06 1206 1206
Cush and cash equivelonis 0.12 o2 o2
Short term loans 043 . 048 ¢4
Other financisl cumen assss 069 241 - - 1.00 109
Teoin 1. 396,58 1,41 A0 - o0 1, 398.99 1 I9A.90
Financhal lnbiiide:
Long term bomowings 1,762 . - . 1,762 1,762
Short ierm bomowingt 1,631 - 1,831 1431
Trwdo Payablem 357 . 357 557
Cither financial currewt lisbiliies 634 - ] 644
Tolm 4,634 4,634 4,634
As ol 31 March 2016
Parficalars Amoctized cost | At Talr value through proflt | A falr valus dhreogh OCI | Tois) carrying | Tetad Fale
or los yalur valme
Designated | Mandalory Equity Plnmdadery
upon inltiel impiremenis
vetognillen designated
wpon Initia
O
Financlal aesets
Lowig term loans 113 L3 113
Olher finnscial non-culment sstols 139 Ige 189
Trade recsivables 1614.15 1.614.1% 1,614 13




Vsl Nisshimbe G ta C,

¥ Limited

Netm te the Ananclel statomonts for ihe year ended 31 March 2007

(Ameunis In Lacs)
v bank balunces - - : . -
Cash and cash squivalanis 220 . . 220 220
Short term lomns 07s - . 075 075
Ot Tlnancial oument asesty 0.27 - 0.83 . - L9 11
Towl 1,631 = H - - 1,/ 1622
TFlaancial Babililes:
Long term bomowings 3,205.78 - - . - 20479 2,205.78
Shorl termn borrowinga 1,573.02 - - - 1,575.02 151502
Trade Paysble nzas = - - 1235 81235
Othar Anancisl current Bshililies 139.75 - - - - 25975 25975
Tetal 4,852.91 - - - - 4,852,914 4,852,921
Arnt1 Apell 2013
Particuk A tzed cost | At falr value (hrvugh profik | At falr velue throwgh OC) | Totel carryimg | Tetad Fale
orlsis volne valive
Dalgnaied | Maadetery| Equity Mpddatory
wpan Inidlal Inpruments
mcogolibon desgasted
upos Initial
Financinl guobn
Laong lerm tosns 130 - . 130 230
Othor linancisl non-cusmend sssels b A1) . T 272
Trads receivables 1,431.28 - 143128 1,431 2B
Other bank balances 038 0.25 028
Cash and cash equivalonis 073 - 0.73 on
$hort termm [oane a6 . v 0.63 063
Oiher financial cummet assets 042 014 062 062
Taotal 1,438.34 - 0.1% - - 130,54 143854
Finsnciel Habifibes:
Loag {amm borrowings 2,260.05 - 226005  2,26005
Short mxm bomowinga 1,163.72 - 1,163.72 162,72
Trado Payables 833.9% #3098 $)8.98
Chker finamcial currend liabilities 231.47 - - - 147 231 47
Totnd 490,22 . - - . 4,494,22 4,494.22




Yardheen Niwkinke Garments Compaay Limited
Notes sa (ha Tioanclal statomenits for the ysar endad 31 Marck 20417
{Amennia in Lacs)

{s} Busls of Falr vadus of Financlal wasets sad Nabi¥ites
{1} Fole Valua Marmrchy

Laval 1 - Quoted prices (unadiusied) in active mackels for idemlical azsels or lisbikilios.

Loevel 2 - laputs ollver than quosed prices included within Level | that am observable for the asset or Kability, sither direody (i.e. a3 prices} or
indirectly (i.e. devived from prices).

Lavel 3 - Enputs for the azsets or Yibilities thas are not based on observable maskot dain (unobesrvable inputs).

{15 Thes & ing 1able g falr vastue il by of ansels and Eabilities mansured ot falr valwn

Axat 31 March 2017

h f
[T Fabrvalue | T ""T'" T ":I'! ke
Ay at M Murth
1016 Lovel L Lovel 2 Lavasl 3
Other financinl current astois
P . 241

As nt 34 Morch 3016
Fale value mensurement wi ihe ond of
Partleutnry iy * eporiug perodiyear wieg
"
Asat N March|  pogy | Lewi | Leveld
Tis

Other Annnclal current assols
Derivative finamcial i 083

Asat L April 2015
Falr valas ssasaremont st the end of
Parilcular Falr vahie reparting perlod) weing
asal ) Aprll
2018 Lavel L Leved2 Level 3
Cilber Muanchal currend mseis
<Derivalive finanoil instruments 0.19




Vardhman Nisshinbo Garments Company Limited

Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017

46, Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA
notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated 31 March 2017 on the defails of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and
transacted during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, the denomination wise SBNs
and other notes as per the notification is given below:

Amounts in Lacs

Particulars SBNs* Other denomination Total

notes
Closing cash in hand as on 8 - 1.21 1.21
November 2016
(+) Permitted receipts - 4,13 4.13
(-) Permitted payments - 5.31 5.31

(-) Amount deposited in Bank - - -

Closing cash in hand as on 30 - 0.03 0.03
December 2016

*For the purpose of this clause, the term “Specified Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in
the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs
number S.0. 3407(E) dated 8 November 2016.
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